
WYCKOFF PLANNING BOARD 

FEBRUARY 13, 2008 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
Regular Meeting: February 13, 2008 - 7:30 p.m. 
Location:  Court Room 

      Second floor, Memorial Town Hall 
 
Board Member Attendance: Gordon Stanley, Chairman; Henry McNamara, Alt.; Joseph 
Fiorenzo, Twp. Comm. Rep.; Randy Hoogerheyde; Fred Depken; Kathy Scarpelli; 
Robert Kane, Alt.  Absent: Robert Steinbruch, Vice Chairman; Rick Alnor, Mayor; Dan 
Hartigan; Gerry Chi.  
 
Staff Attendance: Mark DiGennaro, Township Engineer; Peter Ten Kate, Boswell 
Engineering Representative; Joseph Perconti, Board Attorney; Susan Schilstra, 
Administrative Officer/Secretary.   
 

The following statement, in accordance with the Open Public Meeting Act, 
was made by the Chairman, Gordon Stanley, “The regular February 13, 
2008 Meeting of the Wyckoff Planning Board is now in session.  In 
accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act, notice of this meeting  
appears on our Annual Schedule of Meetings. A copy of said Annual 
Schedule has been posted on the bulletin board in Memorial Town Hall; a 
copy has been filed with the Township Clerk, The Record, The Ridgewood 
News and the North Jersey Herald and News - all newspapers having 
general circulation throughout the Township of Wyckoff.  At least 48 hours 
prior to this meeting the Agenda thereof was similarly posted, filed and 
mailed to said newspapers." 
 

Approval of the January 9, 2008 Work Session Minutes 
Approval of the January 9, 2008 Regular Business Minutes 
 

1  RESOLUTION TO APPROVE VOUCHERS FOR PAYMENT 

1A     RESOLUTION #08-02 
 
Board Member Hoogerheyde made a motion to approve vouchers for payment.  
Second, Board Member Depken.  Voting in favor:  Mr. Kane, Mr. McNamara, Ms. 
Scarpelli, Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Mr. Fiorenzo, and Chairman Stanley. 

 

2  RESOLUTION(S) TO BE MEMORIALIZED 

2A  PAUL & ROSE FERRARO (MANE ON MADISON) BLK 238 LOT 13 (B1A); 238 
Madison Avenue.  Amended site plan/variance.   (Scarpelli)  (Applicant is requesting to 
expand the existing building to include an elevator). 

 
Board Member Scarpelli made a motion to memorialize this application for an amended 
site plan/variance.  Second, Board Member Hoogerheyde.  Voting in favor: Mr. Kane, 
Ms. Scarpelli, and Mr. Depken.  Voting in denial:  Mr. Hoogerheyde, and Mr. Fiorenzo. 



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

2 

3  FOR CONSIDERATION 

3A  ORDINANCE 1575 – AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 186-37 OF THE CODE OF THE 

TOWNSHIP OF WYCKOFF “CONTINUANCE FO EXISTING USES AND 
STRUCTURES” TO PROHIBIT SECOND STORY ADDITIONS TO NONCONFORMING 
STRUCTURES WITHOUT THE ISSUANCE OF A VARIANCE. 

 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that the basis and intent of this ordinance is 
when a homeowner/developer has a pre-existing non-conforming structure and they 
would like to modify it.  This proposed ordinance prohibits vertical expansion in the area 
of the non-conforming structure.  This proposed ordinance limits vertical expansions of 
existing non-conformities especially on smaller lots which impact adjacent neighbors. 
Board Member Depken made a motion to recommend the adoption of Ordinance #1575 
to the Township Committee.  Second, Board Member Scarpelli.  Voting in favor:  Mr. 
Kane, Ms. Scarpelli, Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Mr. Fiorenzo, and Chairman 
Stanley. 
 

3B  ORDINANCE  1576 – AN ORDINANCE SETTING THE MAXIMUM IMPERVIOUS 

COVERAGE AREA FOR RESIDENTIAL PRPOERTIES. 
 
It was explained that this ordinance establishes another limitation on development of 
residential lots for the purpose of maintaining more open area on residential lots.  The 
current building coverage limitation does not include improvements which create 
impervious coverage like driveways, walkways, patios, pools, etc.  The proposed 
impervious coverage limitation expands this restriction by adding a new impervious 
coverage limitation which is in addition to the building structure coverage limitation. 
Board Member McNamara made a motion to recommend the adoption of Ordinance 
#1576 to the Township Committee.  Second, Board Member Kane.  Voting in favor:  Mr. 
Kane, Ms. Scarpelli, Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Mr. Fiorenzo, and Chairman 
Stanley. 
 

4 PUBLIC HEARING - Continued  

 

4A   BARRISTER HOME CONSTRUCTION, INC. (BARRISTER AT RUSSELL FARMS) BLK 
377 LOTS 1 & 18.05 (RA-25); Sicomac/Russell Avenue.  Preliminary Major Subdivision/ 
variance.  (Hartigan) (This application proposes to create a seven (7) lot residential 
subdivision creating six (6) new single family residential lots on two (2) existing 
residential parcels totaling 5.66 acres).  

 
Mr. Robert Milanese, the principal of Barrister Home Construction and applicant, Mr. 
Andrew Missey, the applicant’s engineer, Mr. Peter Steck, the applicant’s planner and 
Mr. Russell Huntington, the applicant’s attorney, were present. 
 
Mr. Huntington said this is the continued application of Barrister Development for the 
Russell Farms project.  This application will continue with review and analysis of a 



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

3 

conforming six (6) lot layout on this site.  He noted that the applicant does not seek to 
build Exhibit A-7 which depicts a 5 lot concept plan.  This exhibit was prepared in 
response to a question as to whether the density of the lot could be reduced to create a 
more desirable project.  The Planner, Mr. Steck will explore these issues with the 
Board. 
Mr. Peter G. Steck, who was previously sworn, continued with his testimony.  He said 
that he is familiar with both the applicant's desire to build 6 lots off of a cul-de-sac plus 
on lot on Russell Avenue which is Exhibit A-13, dated October 10, 2007 and Exhibit A-7 
which shows 5 lots off of the cul-de-sac and one lot off of Russell Avenue.  He said that 
this property is irregular in shape and the soundest way to develop it is to put a cul-de-
sac up the middle of the lot because it forces a traditional orientation of lots that front on 
a less traveled street, rear yards that abut other residential properties so the lots will be 
configured with respect to one another and the houses will face the cul-de-sac. The 
stream will be preserved and there are isolated steep slopes. The State of New Jersey 
in its 2001 Master Plans says that it is a more efficient use of land to accommodate 
development in areas where you already have infrastructures.  The proposed six (6) lot 
subdivision as opposed to the five (5) lot subdivision, distributes those improvements 
over six lots rather than five lots. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked why the cost of infrastructure is relevant. Why 
from a planning standpoint is this a factor that the Planning Board should consider? 

 
Mr. Steck said the MLUL encourages more efficient use of land.  Both cul-de-sacs are 
essentially the same.  There will be more paving per house on a five lot subdivision.  
There would be less of an environmental disruption per house on a six (6) lot 
subdivision. 
 
Mr. Huntington said that the Wyckoff Zoning Code and Master Plan envisions housing 
developments that have certain characteristics.  In this RA-25 zone lot sizes should be 
at least 25,000 square feet which is very similar to the surrounding homes. 
 
Mr. Steck said that if you add the lots areas and extract the cul-de-sac the applicant is 
below lot density on this site.  The issue is the shape of the mother lot.  My opinion is 
that good planning is to have lots that result in predictable development.  One of the 
problems with the alternate conforming 5 lot subdivision is that you start to have 
unusual shapes and the lots are not symmetrical. For example, the 44,000 square foot 
lot now has a side yard that abuts a neighboring property owner’s rear yard which is not 
a traditional configuration.   
 
Mr. Huntington asked where he would put the pool on the 44,000 square foot lot. 
 
Mr. Steck said the pool would be placed in the side yard and visible from the road.   
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked what the depth of this lot is. 



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

4 

 
Mr. Steck said this lot has a side yard along the roadway.  The house would need to 
front on Russell Avenue and leads to an unpredictable development on this lot and 
violates the purpose of the Municipal Land Use Law (MLUL). 
Mr. Huntington said the only deficiency on the proposed six (6) lot subdivision is the 
request for a variance on lot depth of 10% only on proposed Lot 18.09. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that hypothetically a variance could be waived 
for the house fronting on the cul-de-sac if the five lot plan is a better plan from the 
standpoint of the Township.   
 
Mr. Steck said the 44,000 square foot lot meets the code in terms of the letter of the law 
if it fronts on Russell Avenue.   However, it produces a contorted orientation and does 
not meet the code for bulk requirements.   In the Kaufman case there was a deficiency 
of 16’ on lot frontage which was approved.  Here there is a deficiency in the depth of the 
lot.  The area that is left for building is about 55’ in depth. 
 
Mr. Huntington said the 44,000 lot width in the five lot subdivision is shallower than the 
lot width on Lot 18.09 in the proposed six lot subdivision.  It also requires more bulk 
variances. 
 
Mr. Steck said that the six lot subdivision is a more efficient plan and the lots are more 
regular. 
 
Mr. Huntington said the applicant is asking the board to grant the variances for the six 
lot layout which is a better planning alternative than the conceptual five lot subdivision 
plan.    He asked Mr. Steck his opinion as to whether a C1 or C2 variance would 
support the granting of a lot depth variance on Lot 18.09. 
 
Mr. Steck said the C2 variance would meet the Kaufman criteria on Lot 18.09 on the 
proposed six lot subdivision and there would be no detriment.  The benefit is a better 
planned subdivision in that the houses are oriented in a customary way.   
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that a variance is being requested on Lot 18.09 
for lot depth.  He added that this proposed subdivision is not a C1 variance. 
 
Mr. Steck said a C1 variance could be requested since the property is irregular in shape 
and there is a stream on one lot and an existing house. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said there is no exceptional hardship on this 
property that would result in a C1 variance. 
 
Mr. Huntington said that the strict enforcement of the zoning code caused by the 
narrowness of Lot 18.09 creates a hardship in that it interferes with a conforming 
development.     



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

5 

 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that it creates a practical difficulty not in 
developing the lot as a whole but in creating this additional lot.   A C2 analysis is to 
focus on the deviation from the zoning ordinance so that the Board can evaluate the 
purpose of the MLUL.  The second is the analysis of the benefits of the deviation versus 
the detriments. 
 
Mr. Steck said the C2 is a balancing test and you focus on the purpose of the MLUL.  
The purpose of the deviation on Lot 18.09 encourages more efficient use of the land, it 
acknowledges the principles that are in other planning documents such as the 2001 
State plan and it encourages single family homes that are oriented with respect to 
single family homes.  By removing the deviation on Lot 18.09 it causes the reorientation 
of the design of the subdivision.   
 
Board Member McNamara said that the five lot subdivision concept plan is the 
applicant’s interpretation of removing Lot 18.09.  There are other alternatives that can 
be presented to the Board that would not have a super sized lot on it.   
Mr. Huntington said that by requiring the applicant to have a double sized lot as the 
consequence of not granting a variance in this circumstance is a hardship and poor 
planning in this RA-25 zone. 
 
Board Member McNamara said that all of the lots can also be evenly distributed in lot 
area. 
 
Mr. Steck said there would then be five (5) contorted lot sizes in this area.  There is no 
detriment in granting a lot width variance for 15.6’ on the proposed six lot subdivision. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that it is the applicant’s position that the benefit  
is a better planned subdivision by having six lots as opposed to five lots which would be 
larger in size.  Are there any other benefits. 
 
Mr. Steck said the six lot subdivision is more efficient use of the land and would follow 
the purpose of the MLUL.   
 
Mr. Huntington said the benefits of a cul-de-sac is that they all have an internalized road 
system that they are all generally buffered from surrounding properties since the rear 
yards are all around the perimeter.  A conventional cul-de-sac with all lots of the same 
size is better planning than a five lot subdivision. 
   
Chairman Stanley said that the Board had requested alternatives that would eliminate 
the variance on Lot 18.09.  The applicant returned with one alternative plan 
 
Mr. Huntington said that Mr. Missey said this would be the best alternative  plan unless 
the Board would want to grant more variances such as lot lines being radial to the street 
or perpendicular wherever possible.   A five (5) lot subdivision will always create 



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

6 

irregular lots. 
 
Board Member McNamara asked if the applicant considered moving other lot lines in 
order to create a more orderly five lot subdivision. 
 
At this time the Board Secretary advised the Chairman Stanley that exhibit A-7, the 
alternative five (5) lot subdivision, had been previously marked as exhibit A-17.  Where 
it has been discussed on the record as A-7 it should be changed to A-17.  Chairman 
Stanley reiterated this to the Board Members and the applicant. 
 
At this time Mr. Huntington recalled Mr. Missey to testify. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked Mr. Missey to comment on the alternative plan. 
 
Mr. Missey said on Exhibit A-13 if the lot lines were moved and one lot was eliminated 
there would be less lots with more frontage on the cul-de-sac bulb and the houses 
would appear awkward on these elongated lots.  A house would still need to front on 
Russell Avenue since the township ordinance reads that when you designate the front 
yard in Wyckoff you have to designate the smaller frontage of the two sides. 
 
Mr. Huntington said that when you super size a lot the smaller of the two fronts is the 
way the house will face.  As you move the lot lines you keep triggering new and different 
variances.  Exhibit A-17 is a fair example of what a planning alternative is. 
 
Chairman Stanley asked with regard to the different scenarios that you worked out were 
there other alternatives that made more sense that the A-17 that are better with regard 
to planning. 
 
Mr. Missey said that a planning idea could be the reduction of the width of the right of 
way.   This would make Lot 18.09 conform to lot depth.  There are no other 5 lot layouts 
that would work since one lot will always need to front on Russell Avenue. 
 
Board Member Kane said that all the traffic will now enter and exit onto Russell Avenue.  
Will there be more traffic with this development.  
 
Mr. Steck said this is a different use than the prior business use.  Residential traffic is a 
less intense use than commercial traffic.  
 
Chairman Stanley opened the application for public comment. 
 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
Mr. Nick Berardo, 536 Lydia Lane, Wyckoff, NJ.  He stated that he is concerned with 
drainage issues.  The developer has agreed to change the location of the retention 
basins from Lots 18.06, 18.07 and 18.08 to the respective front yards and side yards.  
The overflow will now be directed towards the new cul-de-sac storm drainage system.  



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

7 

With regards to increasing the ground water and surface water drainage will lead to the 
water flowing to the lower property elevations on adjacent properties.   My proposal is 
that the plans should include an engineered surface and sub-surface drainage system 
along the white pine berm or northerly side of the proposed project, to capture any 
water and redirect it towards the wetlands as opposed to adjacent properties and 
roadways.  Mr. Missey said that the applicant would consider this. 
 
Chairman Stanley asked if the applicant was willing to consider this proposal. 
 
Mr. Huntington asked Mr. Missey if there is a benefit to the drain that is being 
discussed. 
 
Mr. Missey said that this drain would help the condition that is occurring several 
hundred feet away from the proposed project. 
  
Mr.  Milanese said he has no problem with the condition that a sub-surface drainage 
system be installed and that Mr. Ten Kate and Mr. Missey would come up with a design. 

 
Township Consulting Engineer Ten Kate said that he proposes it be a series of surface 
inlets and sub-surface drains connected to take the flow away from the site.  
 
Mr. Huntington reminded the Board that this drainage system will fix a situation that is 
not of the developer’s doing in the neighborhood. 
 
CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Board Member Hoogerheyde asked what the status is for the on-site environmental 
issues. 
 
Mr. Milanese said the last round of tests have been performed but they have not been 
analyzed.   The remediation plan will need to be approved by the NJDEP and then the 
buildings need to be demolished and the blending process of the soil can start.  
 
Board Member McNamara said the remediation must be completed before any building 
permits can be issued.   
 
Township Consulting Engineer Ten Kate said there is one issue regarding Lemmerman 
Pond that was brought up in the Wyckoff Fire Chief’s February 3, 2007 letter.   
 
Mr. Huntington said we are aware of this request but do not own the property; it is 
across the street.  We do not have permission to do any work nor can we apply for the 
permits.  The applicant will clean the pond as a condition of approval of this subdivision 
provided the town gets the permits for us.  The only condition other than getting the 
permits is that we can do this once construction begins. 



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

8 

 
Township Consulting Engineer Ten Kate said the pond will need to be dredged and 
taken down to its original depth.  He said this will be part of the permit process because 
Lemmerman’s Pond is used for drafting for the Fire Department. 
 
Mr. Huntington said the applicant will de-silt the pond. 
 
Chairman Stanley asked what would be done with the dam since the water goes around 
the dam. 
 
Mr. Huntington said we will not be touching the dam. 
 
Township Consulting Engineer Ten Kate said he had heard that the Temple will be 
correcting the dam.  He added that the township will need to get the permits for the 
applicant. 
 

A FIVE MINUTE RECESS WAS TAKEN AT THIS TIME 
 

Chairman Stanley mentioned to the public that the Wyckoff Main application has asked 
for a postponement.  It will be heard next month at the Wednesday, March 12, 2008 
Planning Board meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Chairman Stanley asked for a motion for the Barrister at Russell Farms application.   
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that he is not in favor of this application 
because this application is seeking variance relief for lot width and steep slope 
variances.  He is not satisfied with the granting of the variances.  This application is not 
a C1 variance request because there is no uniqueness with regard to the lot in question.  
The only real issue is whether the standards to a C2 variance criteria have been made.  
Therefore, I do not support the application.    
 
Chairman Stanley said there may be other alternatives but the applicant would like a 
vote tonight.   
 
Board Member Hoogerheyde said he share’s similar feelings that Mr. Fiorenzo has 
stated.  He said he is not sure this is the best plan for this property. 
 
Chairman Stanley said the applicant has asked for a vote. He asked the Board to move 
forward.  He asked Board Member Kane to proceed with a motion. 
Board Member Kane made a motion to approve this application for a six (6) lot 
subdivision plus the existing house on Russell Avenue for a total of a seven house 
subdivision as presented with the following conditions:  

1. Fire Department memo issued on February 3, 2007 states that a fire hydrant 
will need to be located between lots 18.05 and 18.06.  Remediation will also 
be made to the pond across the street;  



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

9 

2. On the northerly property line there will be installed a subsurface drainage 
facility;  

3. A depth variance on Lot 18.09 is granted; 
4. The existing variance on Lot 1is noted; 
5. Steep slope variances referred by reference to the Boswell Report dated   

August 24, 2007 on Lot 18.08 and for construction of the roadway are 
granted;  

6. The County will require a deposit in lieu of the Russell Avenue road widening; 
7. There is a proposed ROW widening to the County;  
8. Proposed Conservation Easement be dedicated to the township; 
9. Comply with DEP approval and State approval;  
10. Comply with the Development Fee Ordinance  

Second:  Depken.  Voting in favor:  
Mr. Kane said that he has heard all testimony.  This re-development of this property   
would alleviate runoff that is caused by the steep slopes that presently exist and that 
testimony regarding the drainage improvements to the property which will remediate 
and improve the drainage in the area.  This single family development is a superior use 
under the statutes under the State of NJ and it is consistent with the Master Plan.  The 
applicant has brought forth a conceptual 5 lot plan and after reviewing the 6 lot proposal 
is superior to the 5 lot proposal.  The applicant has met the criteria for a C2 variance 
and this subdivision will benefit the township.  I vote yes. 
Ms. Scarpelli  said she has attended all of the hearings for this application and has 
heard testimony from the applicant’s engineer and planner.  The 6 lot subdivision does 
fit more homogeneously into the nature of the neighborhood.  The developer is willing to 
address existing drainage issues on Long Drive and Lydia Lane that have nothing to do 
with this subdivision to improve the relationship with neighboring property owners.  I 
vote yes. 
Mr. Depken said that 2 variances are being requested for steep slope and lot width on 
one lot.  This is an existing odd shaped piece of property.  The 6 lot subdivision is far 
superior to the 5 lot conceptual plan.  I vote yes.  
Mr. Hoogerheyde said that he votes no to this application. 
Mr. Fiorenzo said that he votes no as to the reason stated earlier.  
Chairman Stanley said he also has been at all of the meetings and have carefully 
weighed all of the testimony.  I agree with all of the comments of the Board Members 
who have voted in the affirmative.  The additional drainage installed on the northerly 
side of the property, along with the dredging of the pond across the street and also feel 
that the 6 lot subdivision will be more conforming with the existing neighborhood and 
better planning.  I vote yes. 
Board Secretary Schilstra said 4 yes votes and 2 no votes.  The application for a 6 lot 
subdivision has been approved. 
 

5 PUBLIC HEARING – NEW 

 

5A  WYCKOFF FAMILY YMCA BLK 202 LOT 80.03 (RPP-1). 691 Wyckoff Avenue.  



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

10 

Amended site plan.  (Steinbruch) (Applicant is requesting amended site plan approval in 
order to rebuild the pavilion/ snack bar building and replace the bathhouse for ADA 
compliance). 
 
Mr. Frank Crotty, the applicant’s attorney, Mr. Hans Erdenberger, the applicant’s 
architect, and Ms. Joy Vottero, the Executive Director of the YMCA, were present.   
 
Mr. Crotty stated that the application being presented tonight is for the replacement of 
old pavilion that serviced the Spring Lake property.  The old building was determined 
unsafe and was removed in late spring.  Presently a large tent is temporarily in place for 
use.  The new structure will be used in the same manner as the old structure which will 
service the summer use of the lake by the campers and the Spring Lake Membership.  
The new structure will be installed on the old foundation.   It will be serviced by the 
existing road and a portion of the road will be moved closer to Spring Meadow Drive or 
20’ to 30’ into the 150’ Spring Meadow buffer zone.   
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked Mr. Crotty to address the Tri-party agreement 
with Spring Meadow where the YMCA is not allowed to encroach into the buffer area. 
 
Mr. Crotty said there was an agreement signed in  February 1986 and an amended 
agreement dated October 6, 1992, paragraph 1B last 2 lines states that this 150' area 
of the southern curb cut of Spring Meadow Drive “shall remain as is presently used with  
no new construction for the YMCA retains the right to remove an existing concrete 
slab".  This pavilion is replacement construction and not new construction. The one 
change is the relocation of the road closer to the southern curb of Spring Meadow Drive 
which is within the 150’ encroachment.    
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked if this was a contractual issue that will need 
to be discussed with Spring Meadow.   
  
Chairman Stanley said that  appears that it is encroaching into the 150’ buffer area.   
 
Mr. Crotty said the YMCA is allowed to replace and repair the building in paragraph 6 of 
the prior 1986 Agreement.  The replacement of the building does not adversely impact 
the agreement or the amended agreement. 
 
Chairman Stanley said the parking lot, driveway and removal of trees is what the issue 
is since the Township of Wyckoff is a party to this agreement. 
Mr. Crotty said that he met with Kathy Smith who is on the Board of the Spring Meadow 
Condominium Association.  We do not propose an amendment to the 1992 amended 
agreement.  Presently there is no formal renegotiation of the agreement at this time.  
We wish to see what the feeling of the Board is at this time. 
 
Board Member McNamara said he understands the building will be constructed on the 
same footprint but does is does the present building have two stories.  Will there be an 



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

11 

expansion of use to this building in terms of its size.  
 
Mr. Crotty said the pre-existing building had a second story for storage. There will be a 
second story as proposed and used as storage as well as emergency use in case of a 
storm for the children to go.   The bathrooms will also be moved into the new building.  
The new building will become ADA compliant and that is the reason for the location of 
the road at the rear of the building.  The use of the building will not change but the 
second floor will have more useable space. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that aside from the zoning and planning issues 
one issue is the existing agreements.  Spring Meadow may have serious objection to 
this construction.  
 
Board Member Depken  asked if we should go forward with this application if there is no 
agreement with Spring Meadow. 
 
Chairman Stanley said the YMCA can proceed as long as they are in discussion with 
Spring Meadow. 
 
At this time Chairman Stanley asked that all exhibits be marked as identification: 
A-1 Application 
A-2  Drainage calculations dated December 11, 2007 
A-3  Site Plan consisting of 3 pages 
A-4  Site improvement plan - 2 sided  
A-5  2 sheets of photos 
A-6   Tri-party agreement dated 1986 and amended 1992  
A-7  Parking calculations 
A-8  Tree report 
B-1  Township Engineer report dated January 7, 2008  
B-2  Township Engineer report dated January 30, 2008 
  
Hans Erdenberger, the applicant’s architect, was sworn.  He state that he has Bachelor 
degree in architecture, and a licensed architect in the State of New Jersey.  The Board 
accepted Mr. Erdenberger’s credentials. 
 
Mr. Erdenberger said that the pre-existing building structure was unsafe and that is why 
the YMCA is before the Board tonight.  The entire site was evaluated and several other 
areas were found to be unsafe.  The existing restrooms do not meet the current ADA 
codes and regulations.  The retaining walls create a safety concern since they are 
cracked along the length of the wall and listing forward.  There is an existing roadway 
located near the lake which will be relocated next to the proposed building so as to 
allow for a barrier free access to the building.     
 
Chairman Stanley said that the YMCA will be removing the old road and placing it 
elsewhere so there will not be any new impervious area. 



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

12 

 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that most of the roadway will be located in the 
existing buffer area.  
 
Mr. Erdenberger said that most of the proposed road location would be in the buffer 
area.  But it will be replacing the concrete slab and retaining walls that presently exist.     
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked if there will be any new construction or 
removal of any trees in order to construct this road.   
 
Mr. Erdenberger said that removal of the retaining wall would result in the removal of 
approximately 16 to 18 trees.  Spring Meadow is at an elevation that is below the berm.  
Only In the winter will Spring Meadow see the roof of the proposed building.  He said 
that a new concrete foundation will be poured for the new building to be constructed on.  
The footprint will remain the same. 
  
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked Mr. Erdenberger to describe the structure.   
 
Mr. Erdenberger said the new building will need to meet current State Codes and 
barrier free restrooms will be relocated into this new building. 
 
Board Member McNamara asked why the existing bathhouse could not be upgraded to 
accommodate barrier free bathrooms. 
 
Mr. Erdenberger said there is not enough room to accommodate all of the handicapped 
plumbing fixtures.  This building will become a lifeguard station which presently does 
not exist.    
 
Chairman Stanley asked if there is a sewer access to this building.   
 
Mr. Erdenberger said there is a sewer line that belongs to Spring Meadow and would 
propose to tie into it.  He then reviewed the architectural floor plan with the Board.  The 
existing building was designed to accommodate 50 to 100 children and presently there 
are 900 children who would occupy this space during rain storms.  
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked what the square footage of the new building 
will be.   
 
Mr. Erdenberger said the building will be slightly taller than the existing building.  The 
first floor will be 2700 square feet and the second floor is 1800 square feet.   
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked if the parking calculations have changed.  
 
Mr. Erdenberger said only handicapped parking is already provided in this area.  The 
building is a replacement building so additional parking will not be required.  



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

13 

 
Board Member McNamara said this is now a 12 month usable structure and not an 
open air pavilion.  Parking may be an issue through the winter.    
 
Mr. Erdenberger said there is not a lot of parking next to the building.  Groups will walk 
up to the new enclosed pavilion.  We do not see the need for additional parking.    
 
Township Engineer DiGennaro said that parking calculations were submitted this 
evening as A-7.   It appears that the previous requirement was 386 total spaces.  An 
accessory structure of 20 total spaces adjusted the requirement to 406 total spaces.  
408 parking spaces have been provided plus 4 new spaces for a total of 412 parking 
spaces available on site.  There is a six (6) space deficiency under your plan because 
418 was to be the required amount of parking spaces needed.   He explained to the 
Board that the code calls for sizing a parking calculation based on gross building floor 
area.  This proposal would require 32 additional parking spaces based on new 
construction as a gross floor plan area.   The previous application before the Board a 
few years ago used the net useable area was used to calculate the parking areas.   The 
applicant has provided the same consistent approach of showing what the usable floor 
area net verses the gross.  So there is a difference of 12 parking spaces.   I contend 
that there should be 32 parking spaces as a result of the gross floor area in accordance 
with our code and they are proposing 20 new parking spaces based on the calculation 
of a net usable floor area.  There are 406 parking spaces on site which include the 20 
new parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Crotty said the applicant wanted feedback on what the Board’s concerns are.  We 
will meet with Spring Meadow before we return to the Board.   In addition we 
understand there is a parking issue with usable space which we will address. 
 
Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said the biggest issue is the encroachment into the 
150' buffer area with Spring Meadow.  Additional parking is another issue. 
 
Board Member McNamara asked if this will increase the number of Spring Lake 
members. 
 
Ms. Vottero said we are here as Wyckoff's pool.   We are upgrading the facility for 
existing program uses.    
 
Chairman Stanley said an agreement with Spring Meadow may need to be 
renegotiated.    This application will be carried until the March 12, 2008 public hearing 
meeting at 7:30 p.m. 

 

5B  WYCKOFF-MAIN, LLC BLK 224 LOT 5.01 (L1); 420 West Main Street. Amended site 
plan/ variance. (Chi) (Applicant received Planning Board approval in 2006 for a new 
building for 100% medical use along with 70 parking spaces.  The applicant is 



02-13-08RM         Planning Board 
 

14 

requesting an amendment to the previously approved site plan since the NJDEP 
Stream Encroachment approval requires the building be relocated 1.81 feet toward the 
street and required a wider buffer at the rear of the property resulting in the elimination 
of 8 parking spaces). 

 
 This application has been postponed at the request of the applicant. 

 
 
 
There being no further business, a motion to adjourn the meeting was made and 
seconded and passed unanimously.  The meeting concluded at 10:07 p.m. 
 
 
        Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
 
Susan Schilstra, Planning Board 
Administrative Officer/Secretary 


